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Job-Driven National Emergency Grant (JD-NEG) 
Request for Applications (RFA) # V-01 & #V-14 
Questions and Answers Pertaining to the RFA 
(Updated April 24, 2017.  New questions and answers are highlighted in yellow.) 

Q1. We are a training provider. For Customized Training, is it required to have an employer, other 
than us, pays part of the training cost?  Or, we could match part of that cost? 

A1. The Federal Workforce Investment Act (WIA), which is the source of the funding for this program, 
defines Customized Training as training: 

• That is designed to meet the special requirements of an employer or a group of employers; 

• That is conducted with a commitment by the employer to employ an individual on successful 
completion of the training; and  

• For which the employer pays:  1) no less than 10% match for businesses with 50 or fewer 
employees, 2) no less than 25% match for businesses with 51 – 250 employees, and 3) no less 
than 50% match for businesses with 251 or more employees.  Match is defined as additional 
non-Federal and non-State resources that the employer spends on the training. 

The business(es) for which the training is designed would have to commit to employ the program 
graduates and would have to pay the required match. 

Q2. On page 9 of the RFA for the JD-NEG #V-01 grant:  B. Budget Section- it outlines the cap per 
trainee for each type of training allowed under this RFA for OJT, Customized and Apprenticeship 
Training.  Under that section is the following sentence:  If the training proposed by the applicant 
exceeds the caps set above, the applicant must pay the difference.  QUESTION from the Local 
Workforce Investment Area (Local Area):  Does this mean that the LWIA can use Workforce 
Investment Act (WIA) funds to supplement the cost of the training?  The Local Area is looking at the 
“applicant” in this case as themselves applying for the funds.  Is the “applicant” in this case, however, 
the business applying to use the funds?  And, if so, the Local Area cannot use WIA funds to pay in 
addition to the NEG funds? 

A2. The Local Area may not add WIA funds.  To do so would cause New York State to exceed the per 
participant maximums that were negotiated with the U.S. Department of Labor and would also likely 
exceed the negotiated WIA reimbursement maximums for On-the-Job Training and Customized Training.  
Any overage on costs would have to be paid by the business being served. 

Q3. Is there any possibility of using either NEG to cover incumbent worker training in the near term 
for training which will ensure retention of current workforce, and will resulted in projected growth of 
that workforce in the next 12 months? 

A3. There is no possibility of using either the JD-NEG or the DWT NEG for incumbent worker training.  
The funding source for these programs is federal.  The U.S. Department of Labor’s Training and 
Employment Notices (numbers 38-12 and 29-13) that established these grants specifically state that 
training for incumbent workers is not an allowable use of funds under either grant.  New York State 
must abide by that restriction. 
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Q4. I represent a federally qualified health center that has established a community workforce 
development center, providing job placement, GED prep class, ESL and OSHA classes.  Would my site, 
the workforce development center qualify in applying for this grant?  

A4. Eligible applicants under this grant include private sector for-profit businesses, private not-for-profit 
businesses, local workforce investment boards, and training providers.  If the applicant is a public sector 
entity or does not fall into one of these categories, it would not be eligible. 

Q5. Must the training positions lead to Full-Time jobs, or may they lead to Part-Time employment as 
well? 

A5. Positions that are part-time are eligible, as long as they are permanent and year-round.  

Q6. Can training occur in the food sector industry? 

A6. Yes.  There is no restriction on the industry to which the applicant belongs.  

Q7. Is there a minimum number of trainees that businesses must train and hire? 

A7. No.  It may be a little as 1 trainee. 

Q8. Do the training & hiring businesses include private non-profit businesses in addition to private for-
profit businesses? 

A8. Yes. 

Q9. Are applicants responding to the RFA supposed to be employer businesses that will perform the 
training, or are applicants supposed to be training program outreach coordinators? 

A9. They may be either.  Per the RFA, eligible applicants include private sector for-profit businesses, 
private not-for-profit businesses, local workforce investment boards, and training providers.   

Q10. I am wondering if the employer training partners are able to be non-profit businesses, or if they 
must only be in the private field.  Working with businesses that receive public funds would be 
particularly helpful for training of education professionals. 

A10. There is no requirement that the trainers for customized training or apprenticeship training be 
private sector. 

Q11. I am unable to find the RFA on the grants gateway funding portal.  Can you please advise as to 
where I might find what I need to register and pre-qualify as a nonprofit. 

A11. The JD-NEG RFA announcement on Grants Gateway has been restored. 

Q12. The RFA states that “Contracts may not be extended past June 30, 2017, unless USDOL/ETA 
offers and grants NYSDOL an extension of the grant. In the absence of any extension, all awarded 
funds must be fully expended by June 30, 2017.” Is this correct? If my organization were to submit a 
proposal by May 26th, 2017 (the submission deadline), we’d only have approximately 1 month to use 
all awarded funds? 



JD-NEG Questions and Answers Page 3  03-24-2017 

A12. That is correct.  As indicated in Section V.C., Method of Selection, “The end date of the JD-NEG 
grant as approved by the U.S. Department of Labor is June 30, 2017.”  Absent the granting of an 
additional extension from USDOL/ETA, all funded activity must be completed by this date. 

Q13. Please clarify, can we apply concurrently for the NEG-Jobs Driven Grant and the NEG-Incumbent 
Worker Training Grant? 

A13. That is correct.  You may apply concurrently for the Jobs Driven National Emergency Grant (JD-
NEG) and the Sector Partnership National Emergency Grant (SP-NEG) for Incumbent Worker Training 
(IWT) as long as the applications do not propose providing training, wage reimbursement, or other 
payment to the same individual or entity.  The applications must clearly demonstrate different 
individuals to be served and/or additional trainer/staff hours to be reimbursed. 

Q14: I run a for-profit and a non-profit business. I wanted to partake in this grant opportunity but I do 
not have any “employees”.  My for-profit business is run solely by me but is an LLC and the non-profit 
has board members which are not technically employees.  Will I be able to apply for this grant and 
provide this service?  I am an experienced HR professional and College Professor of English and 
Business.  I wanted to know if I am eligible to apply and be considered before I complete the RFA. 
Who else can constitute as an employee? 

A14: No, as you are a sole proprietor and as your board members are not economically dependent on 
the business, you would not be eligible to apply.  As noted in section I.C. of the Job Driven National 
Emergency Grant Request for Applications (Applicant Eligibility), eligible applicants must “have two or 
more employees (principals of corporations and owners of businesses such as sole proprietors or 
partners are not considered to be employees for this criterion)”.  Employees are individuals whose work 
performance is integral to the service or product provided by the business and who is economically 
dependent on the business, regardless of skill level.  However, if an applicant leases its employees for 
payroll and tax reporting purposes, and has authority over the hiring, firing and scheduling of workers, 
they would be eligible for funding consideration. 

Q15: I believe our organization qualifies for this grant.  We are a training program that gets people 
back to work.  We would like to have an application to submit for the grant. 

A15: The Job-Driven National Emergency Grant (JD-NEG) Request for Application (RFA) V-14 is available 
at the New York State Department of Labor (NYSDOL) website at 
https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm.  Please find information regarding the submission 
of applications in section II of the JD-NEG RFA. 

https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm

